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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Jim Gennaro, Chairman of this Committee,

          4  and I would like to welcome you to this hearing.

          5                 Today, the Committee will hear

          6  testimony are two important bills, Intro. 199 and

          7  Intro. 212.  Most of us gathered here today, if not

          8  all of us, have heard New York City referred to as

          9   "the City that never sleeps."  Simply put there is

         10  always some activity or activities occurring in our

         11  great City. These various activities, many of which

         12  fuels the City's economy, are important elements of

         13  our lives, produce noise in a number of ways, let me

         14  just paraphrase a little bit.

         15                 Okay, it is important to engage in

         16  these activities, certainly, and we must always make

         17  sure that these activities do not adversely affect

         18  the quality of life for ourselves or other residents

         19  of our City by creating too much noise.

         20                 Intro. 199, Intro. 212 seek to

         21  address this issue of too much noise in very

         22  specific ways.  Specifically, Intro. 199 seeks to

         23  close the gap in the Administrative Code by

         24  eliminating the operation of circulation devices,

         25  you know, fans and big devices that sit on top of
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          2  buildings.  These are building air conditioners and

          3  pumps.  And Intro. 199 would seek to address these

          4  in such a matter that when they are used in

          5  combination, they may lawfully make no more noise

          6  than one by itself is allowed to make. And the

          7  loophole here, I guess if you want to call it that,

          8  is that there is a certain decibel level for each of

          9  these devices. But if you use them in tandem or

         10  triplicate, you could be, you know, producing quite

         11  a bit of noise however, because each one of the

         12  units by itself does not violate the decibel level,

         13  they would be legal.  Perhaps this is something that

         14  we should take a look at.

         15                 Intro. 199 would set a 45 decibel

         16  level, even when circulation devices are used in

         17  combination.

         18                 The next Intro. Is Intro. 212, which

         19  seeks to address the dramatic increase in

         20  construction activity by more clearly defining the

         21  types of these activities that may occur on

         22  weekends.  Although, I am keenly aware of how

         23  important various non- commercial and commercial

         24  activities are to making sure that our city's

         25  economy is robust, I believe that we can find common
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          2  ground whereby these various activities can occur,

          3  while simultaneously protecting the quality of

          4  neighborhood life.

          5                 So these are the two bills that we

          6  are going to be hearing today.  I would like to

          7  recognize some of the other Council members that are

          8  with us.  We have a guest Council member, all the

          9  way to my left, we have Tony Avella who is not a

         10  member of this Committee, but is the prime sponsor

         11  of Intro. 212.  We have Council Member Jennings, a

         12  member of this Committee, from Queens; Council

         13  Member Koppell, a member of the Committee, from the

         14  Bronx; and Council Member Serrano, also from the

         15  Bronx.  We are joined by Committee Counsel, Donna De

         16  Costanzo, and Richard Colon, the Policy Analyst for

         17  the Committee, that was my old job, once upon a

         18  time. And I want to thank everyone who is going to

         19  be giving us the benefit of their views.  But first

         20  I would like to recognize Council Member Avella, the

         21  prime sponsor of Intro. 212, who will make a brief

         22  statement, Council Member Avella.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chairman. First of all, let me thank you for

         25  holding this hearing today, I think it is an
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          2  important issue on both bills.

          3                 I just have a couple of quick

          4  comments that in reference to Intro. 212, that, and

          5  I agree with you, based upon your opening statement,

          6  that it is very important that we have a robust

          7  economy, in terms of building and construction.  But

          8  at the same time it is very important to balance the

          9  needs of neighborhoods and communities, in terms of

         10  noise and pollution. And I think, Intro. 212

         11  attempts to establish that balance and further

         12  strengthen existing language.  And I think you will

         13  be hearing from some of the City agencies here today

         14  that the original language, which was voted by the

         15  City Council 11 years ago, never intended to have

         16  the situation that exists now, where new

         17  construction is existing as an as- of- right

         18  situation on the weekends.

         19                 And I appreciate your having this,

         20  and I look forward to the testimony.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         22  thank you very much for your statement, thank you

         23  for your leadership on this issue.

         24                 And we have our first panel of

         25  witnesses, I guess we have representatives of DEP
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          2  and the Buildings Department.  As you know, we have

          3  a ritual in this Committee of placing our witnesses

          4  under oath.  We will have the Counsel to the

          5  Committee do the honors, and then after that I would

          6  like you to state your name for the record and

          7  proceed with your good testimony.  And it is a real

          8  pleasure to have all of you here with us today.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 Donna, if you could do the honors,

         11  please?

         12                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please, raise your

         13  right hand?  In the testimony you are about to give,

         14  do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole

         15  truth, and nothing but the truth?

         16                 ALL:  I do.

         17                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         19  much.  Welcome to, it is a pleasure to have you

         20  here.  And I guess, in whatever order you wish to

         21  proceed, you know, state your name for the record,

         22  and proceed with your testimony.  I just want to

         23  make sure that I have the testimony.  Do I have the

         24  testimony, do I have the statements?  Okay, does DEP

         25  have written testimony?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALVATRONI:  Yes,

          3  we do, Mr. Chairman.  I would have hoped that you

          4  have gotten a copy.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, have we got

          6  a copy of that?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALVATRONI:  I am

          8  sorry, I am told that we did not submit it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, okay.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALVATRONI:  I

         11  will be brief. Our counterparts, the Department of

         12  Buildings, will start actually.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I will listen

         14  real to your testimony.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALVATRONI:  Thank

         16  you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I will look

         18  right at you and absorb every word.  Okay.

         19                 Thanks very much, feel free to state

         20  your name for the record and proceed with your

         21  statement.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:  Good

         23  afternoon, Chairman Gennaro and members of the

         24  Committee of Environmental Protection.  My name is

         25  Robert LiMandri.  I am Deputy Commissioner for
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          2  Operations at the New York City Department of

          3  Buildings.  I am here to testify in the support of

          4  the goals of Intro. 212.  The Department of

          5  Buildings, along with the Department of

          6  Environmental Protection and the Administration has

          7  been work with the bill's sponsor, Council Member

          8  Avella, to address the issues of noise associated

          9  with the construction of new homes on the weekend.

         10                 While we support the intent of Intro.

         11  212, its current form may not effectively address

         12  the goals of this bill. My testimony today is based

         13  on proposed changes that were discussed with the

         14  bill's sponsor that would better achieve the

         15  intended goals.  Currently, the law generally

         16  permits construction activities on the weekend for

         17  one- or two- family homes.  The proposed bill would

         18  prohibit new construction on Saturdays and Sundays

         19  without a variance.  Alterations, minor alterations

         20  and ordinary repairs on existing one- or two- family

         21  dwellings, convents, rectories and group homes as

         22  defined in the Building Code, would continued to be

         23  permitted on the weekends.  The Department would

         24  retain their authority to issue emergency variances

         25  on a case- by- case basis.
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          2                 The Noise Code provisions would be

          3  enforced by the DEP, whose staff has the expertise

          4  and authority in this area.  The Department of

          5  Buildings will assist this effort by continuing to

          6  respond to complaints of work performed without a

          7  permit or without a required variance, and to issue

          8  violations when appropriate.

          9                 I hope this effectively summarizes

         10  the Department's support of the proposed changes to

         11  this bill, and I would be happy to answer any

         12  questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         14  thank you very much.  Okay, so you may be working

         15  with Council Member Avella to address the issue, and

         16  you are supporting the goals, and your testimony is

         17  on changes.  Now what changes do you want to 212,

         18  that is what I am sort of looking for?  I mean, is

         19  that what you put here?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         21  Primarily, what we are, what the goal, my

         22  understanding of the goal of the Committee is, is to

         23  effectively regulate construction of new home

         24  construction on Saturday and Sundays.  And so, the

         25  way the current language is in 212, there are some
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          2  loopholes, and particular pieces that would more

          3  closely align and better achieve your goals.  And we

          4  have discussed those with Council Member Avella.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you want to

          6  tell me what they are?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:  Sure.

          8  It is my understanding that in the current 212 that

          9  you have in front of you has language that comes

         10  from the Consumer Affairs.  And in order to more

         11  closely align with to the way to enforced and to

         12  specifically address new home construction, what we

         13  are proposing or advising the Committee is to more

         14  closely align with that.  And that would have to do

         15  with new building permits.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, I just, I

         17  do not understand.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:  Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I mean, I just

         20  do not understand.  I really need to know what, to

         21  say that you want things to align or whatever, you

         22  know, you have got to help me out here.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:  Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Tell me what is

         25  in 212, and tell me how you want to make 212 better,
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          2  with as much specificity as you can provide?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:  Okay.

          4  In Section 24, 224(c)(2), when it describes the

          5  actual building, and (c)(3) Actual Home Improvement

          6  Means.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:  The

          9  intention we are in alignment with, and if we take

         10  those sections and more closely align that with how

         11  we actually allow permitted construction today, we

         12  actually write building permits for alteration types

         13  one, two and three, which is understood by the

         14  Building Construction community.  And if we actually

         15  align the bill more closely with the way we permit,

         16  it will allow us to deliver to give you the sliver

         17  of new home construction outside of the specifics

         18  that are written in the current proposed 212.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Mr.

         20  Chairman, if I might, if I read my testimony, it

         21  might sort of put the package together.  And as the

         22  Deputy Commissioner has alluded to, we have had

         23  meetings, the staff has had meetings with Council

         24  Member Avella, they were very successful.  And I

         25  thank him, personally, and also his staff for great
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          2  cooperation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, so why

          4  don't we have Bob give his testimony, and that will

          5  eliminate me.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Good

          9  afternoon, Mr. Chairman and members, I am Bob

         10  Alvatroni, Deputy Commissioner of Environmental

         11  Compliance of the New York City Department of

         12  Environmental Protection.  On behalf of Commissioner

         13  Ward, thank you for the opportunity to offer

         14  testimony on Intro. 212 sponsored by Council Member

         15  Avella, Intro. 199 sponsored by Chairman Gennaro.

         16                 Intro. 212 is an amendment to Section

         17  224 of the noise code.  That provision authorizes

         18  construction activities on weekends at one- or two-

         19  family homes in Occupancy Group J- 3.  The provision

         20  also prohibits weekend construction of other types

         21  of buildings, unless a variance is granted by the

         22  New York City Department of Buildings.  DEP agrees

         23  with Intro. 212 sponsor that a broad interpretation

         24  of the term construction activities has created a

         25  situation where builders are constructing new
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          2  dwelling units on weekends without a variance.

          3                 New constructions can be an

          4  inherently noisy activity that has the potential for

          5  creating a significant disturbance.  It is DEP's

          6  contention that the 1991 amendment, Section 224

          7  authorizing construction activities on weekends was

          8  never intended to authorize new construction.

          9                 Intro. 212 addresses the issue of

         10  weekend construction by restricting the types of

         11  activities that are permitted, and by clearly

         12  prohibiting new construction.  In furtherance of the

         13  goal of restricting weekend construction of new

         14  homes, DEP and its colleagues at the Department of

         15  Buildings have suggested, to Council Member Avella,

         16  that some changes be made in this legislation.

         17                 The gist of these changes to

         18  authorize only alterations, minor alterations and

         19  ordinary repairs on one- or two family homes on

         20  weekends.  These three terms are defined in the

         21  Building Code, and they clearly exclude new

         22  construction of buildings.

         23                 We hope to work further with the

         24  sponsor and the Committee to move forward together

         25  with legislation that will allow DEP to enforce
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          2  against new construction that threatens the weekend

          3  peace and quiet of residential neighborhoods.

          4                 And again, I thank, certainly, the

          5  sponsor for working closely, and his staff working

          6  diligently with us to craft something that we think

          7  is very palpable.

          8                 I will now read further onto Intro.

          9  199, Chairman Gennaro, which is of your interest,

         10  not that the other one was not.

         11                 This legislation amends a provision

         12  to the Noise Code, Section 24- 237 that creates a

         13  decibel standard as measured from within a dwelling

         14  unit for the noise emanating from a circulation

         15  device, such as fans, air conditioners or

         16  ventilation units.

         17                 Intro. 199, like its predecessor

         18  legislation, introduced in prior Council sessions,

         19  grew out of enforcement situations where multiple

         20  circulation devices in a single location and under

         21  common ownership and control, did not individually

         22  exceed the applicable standard, even though they did

         23  exceed the standard when operated together.

         24                 Following the Introduction of 199

         25  predecessor legislation, DEP met several times
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          2  representatives of the Real Estate Board to discuss

          3  the impacts on property owners of making a decibel

          4  standard created for a single circulation device

          5  applicable to groups of circulation devices.  DEP

          6  and REBNY did not come to complete agreement on how

          7  to minimize the impact on neighboring dwelling units

          8  of large groups of air conditioning units operated

          9  simultaneously.  However, one fruitful area of

         10  discussion was the extent to which future problems

         11  associated with the large air conditioning units

         12  operating near residences could be minimized through

         13  planning for noise abatement prior to installation.

         14                 Although, Intro. 199 predecessor was

         15  endorsed by DEP, at this time, DEP urges the

         16  Committee to delay further consideration of the

         17  bill, while DEP reviews enforcement of this, as well

         18  as other decibel standards in the Noise Code.  As

         19  you may remember, DEP had hired a consultant for

         20  this purpose and have been reviewing all the

         21  provisions of the Noise Code.  As this review

         22  approaches its conclusion, we will be creating a

         23  series of recommendations for changes in enforcement

         24  law, which can serve as an agenda for discussion

         25  with the Council and other stakeholders.
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          2                 As part of that process, we hope to

          3  be able to improve our ability to restrict a variety

          4  of noise sources, including circulation devices.

          5                 I thank you for this opportunity to

          6  present this testimony and look forward to answering

          7  any questions you might have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          9  Thank you, Deputy Commissioner Avaltroni.

         10                 Let just jump back to, and for your

         11  testimony on both these items, but let just jump

         12  back to, you know, 212 for a second.  This is like

         13  supposed to be a hearing at which, you know, people

         14  come forward and really, if they have substantive

         15  changes to a bill, you know, just sort of come to a

         16  hearing and say, we have been talking to the

         17  sponsor, we have got a couple of things going, we

         18  are going to work it out with him, and - -   Do you

         19  know what I mean, that does not do anything here.

         20  There are people here that want to know what is

         21  going to be going on in the bill, and just, you

         22  know, to come to the witness table and wink, you

         23  know, like well we are working something out with

         24  the sponsor, just like does not fly.  And so, people

         25  want to come and make substantive comments on a
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          2  bill, that is what I would urge all members of the

          3  Administration to come and do when they come before

          4  this Committee.               You know it should not

          5  take three or four rounds of questioning you know,

          6  from the Chairman just to sort of ascertain like

          7  where you are going with the various changes that

          8  you want to make with the bill.  And I still do not

          9  really know, but I am like losing interest at this

         10  point.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Let

         12  us try to bring your interest level back, then.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Okay.

         15    I think possibly, the testimony that you heard

         16  reflects on the change that have been discussed with

         17  regard to specifics, - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: - -  I

         20  think we can speak to that.  And I do not want

         21  anybody to perceive this as a wink, wink session,

         22  nor do you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, no, no.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         25  Because I think we do good work together, - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: - -

          4  in representing the people of the City of New York.

          5  So that is not our intent to come in that fashion.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, no, but I

          7  was, you know, referring mainly to the testimony of

          8  the Buildings Department that I found completely

          9  without substance.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Well

         11  I am going to, to my left is Geraldine Kelpin, who

         12  is our Director of Air, Environmental Compliance,

         13  Air and Noise Environmental Compliance. I am going

         14  to let her deal with some of the specifics, I think

         15  that will answer some of your questions, and

         16  certainly give you a better interpretation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Great.  And I

         18  certainly do not want to monopolize the time.  We

         19  have other members here who wish to ask questions,

         20  but it should not be this long of a process for me

         21  to try to get what it is that you all want to put

         22  forward.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         24  turn this over to Ms. Kelpin.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, Gerry,
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          2  please.

          3                 MS. KELPIN:  Okay, thank you for the

          4  opportunity to clear this up.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, you have

          6  got to speak right into the microphone.

          7                 MS. KELPIN:  Sorry about that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          9                 MS. KELPIN:  What we, when we looked

         10  at the original bill, - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  212.

         12                 MS. KELPIN:  Intro. 212, it

         13  introduced a number of additional definitions and

         14  concepts that when we thought about the enforcement

         15  of it, it raised a whole new series of questions.

         16  So we went back to our original understanding and

         17  the intent, and we looked at the section that

         18  exists, and we found what we think is a place where

         19  we can make a very simple change that relies on

         20  established definitions within the Code.  So we went

         21  back to the Noise Code, 24- A, and in the place

         22  where it says engage in construction activities,

         23  when we define that in our Noise Code, it is a very

         24  broad definition, and it could include new

         25  construction and demolition.  So, we went to the
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          2  Buildings Code and we found the terms alterations,

          3  minor alterations, or ordinary repair, those are

          4  defined in the Building Department Code.

          5                 What we want to basically do, is

          6  change out the word construction activity and

          7  replace it with these terms from the Building Code,

          8  alterations, minor alterations and ordinary repair,

          9  which confine you to, we believe, the intent of the

         10  original change, which was to prohibit new

         11  construction on one- and two family homes, as well

         12  as demolition of them.  And we realized the, you

         13  know, we could just slip that in place, and that

         14  would be just about the only change.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         16                 MS. KELPIN:  There is another place

         17  where we would want to reference an additional

         18  definition, just to clarify to the Buildings

         19  Department Code.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         21                 MS. KELPIN:  And we think that just

         22  adjusting the definition will give us what we want,

         23  which is to prevent new construction and demolition

         24  of one- and two- family homes.  It would allow the

         25  original concept of home repair to continue.  And if
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          2  we did run into problems with noise from the home

          3  repair activities, already existing in the code are

          4  sections that deal with noise from power tools and

          5  other, you know, construction activities.

          6                 So we think it is already there, and

          7  we think that is the simplest way to go.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          9                 MS. KELPIN:  We may need some word,

         10  something, there are a couple, you know, - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         12                 MS. KELPIN: - - corky little things

         13  that we would just want to make sure, you know, work

         14  out.  But conceptually we are very comfortable with

         15  this doing what we understand is the intent, and it

         16  was our intent in the beginning.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Now do you have

         18  all the specific changes that you wish put forward,

         19  are you prepared to give those to - -  Okay, fine,

         20  fine.

         21                 MS. KELPIN:  I think we - -

         22                 Yes, I just want to get, I know, I am

         23  sure that Tony is, that Council Member Avella - -

         24  But I mean the purposes of using the hearing forum,

         25  to have everybody get a sense of, you know, what
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          2  specific definites you want to change, I mean, that

          3  is always a good thing to the extent that people,

          4  you know, sitting in the audience, they watch it on

          5  television, they read the transcript after the fact,

          6  it is always good to get as much information out

          7  there so that people understand what the changes are

          8  that are proposed.  Those sound very common sense to

          9  me, and it seems like you want to do what we want to

         10  do, you just want to do it a little better.  And so

         11   - -

         12                 MS. KELPIN:  I am not sure better,

         13  maybe more direct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, sure.

         15  Let me just get to something that Bob had said with

         16  regard to the consultant that is working with DEP to

         17  go over, there is a whole review, I understand, of

         18  many different aspects of the Noise Code, or

         19  whatever, which would include something on

         20  circulation devices.  I am just wondering like what

         21  the time table is for that?  I guess there is going

         22  to be, I guess, you have a consultant working on it.

         23  There will be some kind of deliverable, it will be

         24  reviewed by DEP, then I am just wondering when we

         25  might see the work product, because we are eager to
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          2  do something, you know, on noise in the near future.

          3    And to the extent that this can be a starting

          4  point, you know, for very good talks between your

          5  side and our side about how to get this done, will

          6  be great.  But I am just curious as to when this

          7  product is going to be completed, and we could start

          8  this process.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         10  we are anxious as well, Mr. Chairman.  In fact, I am

         11  going to turn this over to Gerry, because she has

         12  been a pivot person.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  This

         15  way you can get a clear answer.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         17                 MS. KELPIN:  At this point we have a

         18  first draft of a number of proposals by the

         19  consultant, we are reviewing them, we have

         20  identified a couple of things that we want to do

         21  additional work on.  They are working at a really

         22  rapid pace for us, so our turn around is, you know,

         23  several weeks.  And then, you know, we would need to

         24  get a few other people to look at it.  But I do not

         25  see it as six, eight months.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          3                 MS. KELPIN:  We are looking at it

          4  like we really want to work on this stuff, because

          5  we think we have a basis to begin discussions,

          6  certainly.  We want to clean up a couple of pieces,

          7  and then, you know, try to start a dialogue.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And this is

          9  something that would include something very

         10  specifically on circulation devices?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  It

         12  would encompass circulation devices, and certainly,

         13  we would want to be part of the process.  I think we

         14  talked about this before.  And as I said, this

         15  becomes much more prominent, obviously, the Noise

         16  Code is 30 years old, it is something that we will

         17  deal with, and we want to make this an open process.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, I may

         19  come back on a second round, but for now, I would

         20  like to open the questioning to other members of the

         21  Committee, and to also, Council Member Avella, and

         22  it seems like Council Member Avella wishes to be

         23  recognized, so it is my pleasure to do so.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman.  I just wanted to make a couple of

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  quick comments.  And in reference to the remarks

          3  that you made earlier.  If there is any blame here,

          4  in terms of the modifications that are going

          5  forward, blame me, do not blame the agencies.

          6                 In the interest of working together,

          7  we have had a number of discussions, and we are,

          8  obviously, coming to a conclusion in moving ahead

          9  this bill in terms of a language that is agreeable

         10  to all the parties and accomplishes the main goal.

         11                 And please do not find fault with

         12  them, if there is a fault here, please blame me.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, just that

         14  it is, we have this, I just want the agencies to

         15  understand, you know, that this is not like a little

         16  close loop here, when people come before the

         17  Committee, they should do their best to try to put

         18  forward, you know, to the public that is sitting

         19  here, to the public that is watching, to the public

         20  that will read the transcript, you know, what the

         21  specific changes are.  It is just not good enough to

         22  say that we are working on it, we are making

         23  progress, we want to get our side closer to your

         24  side, and we are going to move forward. That does

         25  not mean anything to anybody.
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          2                 And so, I know that you have been

          3  working very diligently on this, and I just have an

          4  expectation that when member of the Administration

          5  come forward, there is a real concerted effort to

          6  give as detailed testimony, you know, certainly

          7  within the time frame so that people who are sitting

          8  and watching and reading subsequent, will have a

          9  full understanding of what changes are being

         10  contemplated.  I think that is just good forum.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

         12  concur, Mr. Chairman, as you know.  I do not think

         13  that we have ever tried to be evasive in any of the

         14  testimony that we have given to you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well of course

         16  not.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         18  just want to make sure that that is clear for the

         19  record, that the Bloomberg Administration,

         20  obviously, works with very closely and is very point

         21  specific in addressing any questions you might have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You bet, you

         23  bet.  Okay.

         24                 Okay, this is a question with regard

         25  complaints received by DEP for new home construction
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          2  on weekends and for, you know, circulation devices,

          3  it may not be something that you have at your

          4  fingertips, but just to help us, you know, engage

          5  the sense of the folks out there and on like the

          6  level of this problem.  You know, certainly, we get

          7  complaints in our district offices, I know some

          8  complaints come into DEP, of course, I can only

          9  speak to the complaints I get in my district, Tony

         10  can speak to what comes into his office.  But we

         11  would like to get some sense, if you have it now, or

         12  if not, you know, after the fact of numbers of

         13  complaints for new home construction on weekends and

         14  on, you know, circulation devices that would be

         15  spoken to in Intro. 199.  Do you have any sense of

         16  that now?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We do

         18  not have the specific details that you are

         19  suggesting, but we can tell you that, obviously, the

         20  conditions are more prominent in certain areas, and

         21  I think also, to some degree, seasonal, as one might

         22  expect.

         23                 But we certainly would try to get you

         24  further details in terms of weekends.  I do not

         25  think we have that with us, but we will certainly
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          2  come back to you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Is that

          4  something that will be available to us?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

          6  can break it out because we respond according to

          7  complaints, so we would be able to define when the

          8  complaint issues, and we certainly would be happy to

          9  share that with you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Great, sure.

         11  And one of the reasons that we want to, you know, do

         12  a little something with regard to 212 and the new

         13  home construction on weekends is because of the

         14  increase in the new home construction in New York

         15  City.  And I know that that is going on, I guess, to

         16  some degree in the, you know, 19th Council District

         17  and in southern areas, and in other areas.  But is

         18  this a widespread phenomenon throughout the City,

         19  are we seeing a lot more, you know, new construction

         20  on weekends around the City?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         22  think that this is an area, obviously, that has been

         23  growing over a period of time. And I think that

         24  Council Member Avella is acknowledging that, and I

         25  think working it out with our respective staffs.
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          2  Again, we have been able to clearly delineate where

          3  we think we have issues, and then we will highlight

          4  those areas, and certainly work together. Because, I

          5  think, we are all in agreement in what we have to

          6  do.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Great, well

          8  that is all the questions that I have.  Are there

          9  any other members that have questions of these

         10  witnesses?  No.  Thank you very much, appreciate it.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Thank

         12  you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Next time, no

         14  lecture, I promise, okay?

         15                 Okay, the next witness, we would like

         16  to call Mr. George Armstrong, President of the New

         17  York City Housing Partnership.  If you would bear

         18  with me for one moment, I would appreciate it.

         19                 A little bit of housekeeping, we will

         20  be right with you.

         21                 Okay, thank you very much for coming,

         22  I appreciate your being here.  Donna De Costanzo

         23  will, I guess, place both of you under oath, and we

         24  would be happy if you could state your names for the

         25  record and proceed with your testimony.  Thanks for
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          2  being here.

          3                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          4  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

          5  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          6  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          7                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  I do.

          8                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

          9                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Good afternoon,

         10  Chairman, and we want to thank you and all the

         11  Committee members for the opportunity to testify on

         12  Intro. 212, the proposed amendment that would limit

         13  weekend construction activities.  Excuse me again,

         14  my name is George Armstrong, and I am the President

         15  of the New York City Housing Partnership.

         16                 In the last 20 years the Housing

         17  Partnership has completed more than 22,000

         18  affordable housing units on formerly city- owned and

         19  building citywide.  In addition, we currently have

         20  more than 6,500 units in construction or pre-

         21  development.  We have been a leader in developing

         22  one of the most successful, public, private

         23  partnerships in the country.  And together this

         24  partnership has produced thousands of homes

         25  affordable to families whose average household
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          2  income is approximately $45,000 a year.

          3                 The proposed amendment to the City's

          4  Administrative Code regarding weekend construction

          5  activities, we believe is counter- productive to two

          6  of our major goals.  One producing affordable

          7  housing and also stimulating local economic

          8  development. With regard to affordable housing

          9  construction, any restriction imposed on the

         10  builder's ability to work on one-, two-, or even

         11  three- family housing developments causes home

         12  prices to rise.  The reason is simple.

         13                 In a typical 18- month construction

         14  period, the limits proposed by this amendment may

         15  delay a project two months or more.  A delay of that

         16  duration translates into higher costs for each home.

         17    And the cost of the home, excuse me, as the cost

         18  for the home rises so does the minimum income needed

         19  to purchase that home.  And that means, first time

         20  home- buyers who may have been eligible to buy in

         21  many of the Partnership programs, will be shut out

         22  of our programs.

         23                 Second, cutting the work week and

         24  limiting business activity that has proven to

         25  benefit some of the City's most neglected
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          2  communities, as well as smaller neighborhood

          3  builders who participate in our programs, we believe

          4  is also a mistake.  Housing Partnership Developments

          5  generate significant private- sector activity in

          6  areas where such spending has not previously

          7  occurred. Builders often employ local residents or

          8  use local businesses and suppliers during

          9  construction.  Smaller builders, in particular, are

         10  impacted most severely by restrictions that result

         11  in time delays, which ultimately translates into

         12  higher cost to both the builder and the buyer.

         13                 We acknowledge that small home

         14  construction is typically a six- day work week

         15  industry.  Many builders use Saturdays as a

         16  necessary day to conduct construction and clean up

         17  activities on their sites.  And during good weather,

         18  working on Saturdays ensures that jobs are completed

         19  before cold or wet weather arrives.  Builders often

         20  work on Saturdays as well to catch up on jobs that

         21  they could not complete due to poor weather

         22  conditions during the week.  Our builders work

         23  closely with community organizations who sponsor

         24  each job, marketing the homes to neighborhood

         25  residents and helping them through the application
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          2  process, and also assisting them with any issues

          3  that may arise after they have purchased the home.

          4                 The Housing Partnership has not heard

          5  from any of these local agencies with regard to

          6  problems with noise levels on our sites.  In fact,

          7  much of the feedback we have gotten from area

          8  residents is geared more towards moving the jobs

          9  more quickly. Rather than view new home construction

         10  or multiple- unit construction as objectionable

         11  construction activities, we feel the ongoing

         12  construction of affordable housing is an economic

         13  engine that improves the health of blithed

         14  neighborhoods creates jobs, and helps increase the

         15  rate of homeownership in our city.  It is certainly

         16  not the time to further restrict an already over

         17  regulated industry at a time when the need for

         18  affordable and economic development are in such

         19  demand.

         20                 On behalf of the Housing Partnership,

         21  we urge you not to support this amendment.  And

         22  again, we want to thank you for your support, I

         23  mean, for your opportunity, I am sorry, to testify.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Jumping the gun

         25  a little bit there, aren't you?
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          2                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Yes, right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I think you

          4  need a lecture too, okay?  Only kidding.

          5                 Do you have any sense, I mean,

          6  because you indicated that in placing any kind of

          7  restriction of building activities could lead to,

          8  you know, increased home prices, but do you have any

          9  sense or anyway to quantify what the changes that

         10  are contemplated in Intro. 212?  And I guess you are

         11  mainly talking to Intro. 212, that is really why you

         12  are here.

         13                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Absolutely, correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you have any

         15  of your economists or analysts or whatever try to

         16  engage the impact that you might have as a result of

         17  Intro. 212?  I mean is there any sort of flesh to

         18  that?  I mean it is kind of morphis, we do not know

         19  what 212 is actually going to look like.

         20                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But, you know,

         22  you get some sense of it.  And I am wondering if you

         23  and your members, or whatever, have figured out what

         24  kind of impact we might be looking at, if we were to

         25  proceed with something like 212?
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          2                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Sure.  Our in- house

          3  economists have not looked at it, but we have talked

          4  to several of the builders that participate in our

          5  program.  And as I said in the testimony, the

          6  general feeling is that in a typical construction

          7  period, which lasts anywhere from 18 to 24 months in

          8  the jobs that we do, would result in approximately a

          9  two- month delay in any of the sites.  And as I

         10  said, small home construction is a six- day a week

         11  industry. Folks are definitely working on Saturdays,

         12  particularly the smaller builders who are trying to

         13  take advantage of lower interest rates and

         14  everything else, and trying to move these projects

         15  quickly, as quickly as possible.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, but 212 is

         17  really directed just at sort of like small units,

         18  right?

         19                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Intro. 212 is geared

         20  towards one- and two- family homes, as I understand

         21  it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         23                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Two- family homes

         24  makes up the majority, I would say 80 percent of the

         25  Housing Partnership.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It also even

          3  pushes to four families, right?  It also pushes, it

          4  expands the law to work on the four families.

          5                 So you think it would delay homes in

          6  getting built, and add a significant, I mean, is it

          7  common place for a lot of this type of construction

          8  to be done on the weekends?

          9                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Absolutely.  For the

         10  construction of one- and two- family homes, it is

         11  fairly - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You are almost

         13  like making the case for it, in a way.  You know, it

         14  is becoming very common place, and it is happening a

         15  lot, and we are getting a lot of - -

         16                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  It is common place

         17  for builders of two- family homes to work on

         18  Saturdays, not Sundays.  And our understanding of

         19  the bill is that this bill actually eliminates

         20  construction altogether, two- family homes on the

         21  weekends.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Without

         23  variance.  Like you need a variance to do it.

         24                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  That is correct, that

         25  is correct. Now whether or not it is noise pollution
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          2  is a legitimate issue, is not really what we have

          3  come to argue.  We understand that construction in

          4  and of itself can at times be noisy.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          6                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  But again, in our

          7  experience over the last 20 years, while we receive

          8  a variety of complaints on many other issues, I have

          9  never, we, and I have talked to my predecessor as

         10  well, we have never received complaints directly to

         11  the Housing Partnership with regard to noise.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  What I

         13  would like to do, I know that there is, at least,

         14  one other member that has a question or a comment,

         15  but as we go forward, to the extent that you have

         16  any information that, you know, you or your people

         17  generate that may shed some light on our

         18  deliberations and on our sort of thought process as

         19  we push these forward, please, be sure to be contact

         20  with the Counsel to the Committee, Donna De

         21  Costanzo, and because we want to continue, not only

         22  hear your views here, but to continue actually as we

         23  go forward.

         24                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Absolutely.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And I believe
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          2  that Council Member Avella wishes to be recognized.

          3  Council Member Avella.

          4                 I also want to recognize the

          5  presence, before Tony jumps in, Council Member Bill

          6  DeBlasio from Brooklyn is joining us, a member of

          7  the Committee.

          8                 Council Member Avella.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  A couple of

         10  quick questions. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Is the

         11  New York City Housing Partnership a non- profit

         12  organization?

         13                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  We are.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Okay, we can

         15  certainly take that into account, and maybe we will

         16  have something along those lines in terms of an

         17  amendment.  But we can certainly take a look at

         18  that.

         19                 You made a quick comment about, it

         20  has been your experience for 20 years that you have

         21  not had any complaints.  But this problem only

         22  started 11 years ago, prior to that you never had

         23  the authority, the ability to work on the weekends.

         24  It was only because of the problem in the language

         25  to the law that has resulted in you having this
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          2  right.  So prior to 11 years ago, there was no

          3  weekend construction, period.  So you would not have

          4  a 20- year history to begin with.

          5                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  That is fair, that is

          6  fair.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  And I think

          8  maybe your history is a little bit different,

          9  because you are non- profits, and there is a whole

         10  different perspective.  But we can certainly, you

         11  know, talk.

         12                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Very good.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That Tony is a

         14  fast talker, you know what I mean, he is gifted, he

         15  is gifted.

         16                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  But I know as well, I

         17  am sorry, but something just came to thought, that

         18  although we are a non- profit that produces

         19  affordable housing, there are, I mean, we work very

         20  closely with many for- profit developers who are in

         21  our program who develop affordable housing as well.

         22  So the distinction may not be non- profit, but maybe

         23  we want to talk about affordable housing.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank you

         25  very much. Please continue to stay in touch with us
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          2  on this issue, and thank you, thank you very much.

          3                 MR. ARMSTRONG:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The next

          5  witness from Neighbors Against Noise, Tim Lannan and

          6  Lori Stone.   Tim Lannan and Lori Stone from

          7  Neighbors Against Noise.  To be followed by Robert

          8  Altman of the Queens County Builders and Contractors

          9  Association.  Thank you very much, thanks for

         10  coming.  The Counsel to the Committee will give you

         11  the oath, and then I would be happy if you could

         12  state your name for the record and proceed with your

         13  testimony.  Donna, will do the honors.

         14                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         15  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

         16  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         17  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         18                 ALL:  I do.

         19                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         21  much.  Please state your name for the record and

         22  commence your testimony.  To turn the microphone on,

         23  the light on the microphone has to be off, to the

         24  microphone to be on.  And then you speak right into

         25  it, and you should be all set.
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          2                 MR. LANNAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

          3  members.  I am Tim Lannan, President of Neighbors

          4  Against Noise, a grassroots organization formed in

          5  1996 by people who live and work in Tribecca to

          6  combat harmful noise and other hazardous emissions

          7  from commercial buildings in the Tribecca West

          8  Historic District.

          9                 We support Intro. 199 and anything

         10  else that can be done to reduce the intolerable

         11  levels of noise we must deal with on a daily basis.

         12  But based on our experience, I encourage you not to

         13  stop with passage of this bill.

         14                 For more than six years, our primary

         15  focus has been to reduce noise generated by 60

         16  Hudson Street, also known as the Western Union

         17  Building, which is a major Telecommunications hub

         18  that has an ever growing number of air conditioners

         19  and generators that produce a tremendous amount of

         20  noise, and it made our formerly quiet blocks, the

         21  noisiest in the neighborhood.  Over the years, the

         22  building owners and companies in this building,

         23  which include almost every major Telecommunications

         24  firm in the US, have made and broken numerous

         25  promises to reduce the amount of noise generated by
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          2  equipment in this building.  Yes, because of the way

          3  noise violations are measured by DEP, it has been

          4  virtually impossible for DEP to issue a citation

          5  against the noisy equipment housed in 60 Hudson.

          6  And the noisier it gets, the more difficult it is

          7  for DEP to take action.

          8                 But I fear that Intro. 199 may not be

          9  enough to solve this problem.  While Intro. 199 will

         10  require that circulation devices of any one tenant

         11  in a building not exceed 45 decibels, it will not

         12  reduce the noise pollution created by buildings like

         13  60 Hudson Street.

         14                 Sixty Hudson has dozens of tenants.

         15  If only eight companies, for example, had equipment

         16  on any one side of the building and each created a

         17  sound level of 45 decibels, the accumulative effect

         18  would be measured at 54 decibels, which while only

         19  nine decibels above the 45 decibel threshold

         20  represents eight times the volume of sound.

         21  Therefore, in addition to approving Intro. 199 as

         22  quickly as possible, I urge this Committee to extend

         23  noise legislation to place a limit, ideally 45

         24  decibels on the overall amount of noise that can be

         25  generated by any one building, not just by
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          2  individual corporation or legal entity, legal person

          3  in that building.

          4                 Furthermore, I would urge you to

          5  ensure that DEP has the ability and personnel needed

          6  to enforce these laws.  At a minimum, DEP must have

          7  authority to shut down all equipment in the building

          8  to test for a possible violation, as well as the

          9  authority to ensure compliance after violations have

         10  been measured.

         11                 As you know, noise is probably the

         12  most significant quality of life and health issue in

         13  New York City.  The technology exists to

         14  significantly reduce noise emissions.  We urge you

         15  to write laws that will ensure that it is used to

         16  maximum advantage.

         17                 I offer you 60 Hudson as an object

         18  lesson.  A case where efforts to work

         19  collaboratively with owners and tenants have

         20  resulted in broken promises and no relief.  Absent

         21  regulations, it is clear to us that building owners

         22  and the telecommunications industry will do little

         23  voluntarily to improve the situation.  The potential

         24  for retrofitting other buildings for similar uses

         25  dictates the need for strong and enforceable

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  legislation that will reduce the level of noise and

          3  make our neighborhoods more livable.

          4                 We appreciate your efforts to address

          5  this issue and encourage you to do even more.  Thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

          8  much.  Do you have a statement as well?

          9                 MS. STONE:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, why don't

         11  we do both statements, and then we will have

         12  comments or whatever.

         13                 MS. STONE:  Thank you for having this

         14  hearing today. My name is Lori Stone, and I am a

         15  citizen of 84 Thomas Street, Lower Manhattan.  I

         16  have lived on Thomas Street for 22 years where my

         17  husband and I run an Art Studio business.  Our

         18  family is also there.  I have not been able to open

         19  my windows for 15 years.

         20                 We spent thousand of dollars

         21  soundproofing our space, soundproofing our bedrooms.

         22    My children have quite a bit of difficulty

         23  sleeping at night, the noise has just become

         24  accessibly louder over the years.

         25                 And I would appreciate it if you
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          2  would pass this bill.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Now is that

          4  noise from 60 Hudson?

          5                 MR. STONE:  Yes, it is.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Noise from 60

          7  Hudson, okay. Yes, I just want, I guess, everyone to

          8  understand in this room what kind of, you know,

          9  impact something like 199 would have.  There would

         10  be, because I know that you are coming to the table

         11  asking for sort of like more than 199.  I am just

         12  trying to sort of give you sense of what kind of

         13  Herculean lifts something like 199 would be.  I mean

         14  it would require, you know, massive retrofitting of

         15  buildings throughout the City, and it would be an

         16  enormous undertaking to sort of, you know, push that

         17  through.

         18                 So in terms of, while we, while I

         19  certainly agree, that we should make every best

         20  effort to deal with the situation at hand, sort of

         21  like going beyond 199.  It is something that would

         22  be difficult in the extreme, given the amount of

         23  retrofitting that would have to be done by building

         24  owners throughout the City.

         25                 But the reason that I am here today,
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          2  is that I have a lot of difficulty with noise

          3  myself.  I mean I really value my, you know, peace

          4  and quiet and I have chosen to live in New York

          5  City, and so one of the reasons that I wanted to

          6  come and Chair this Committee was to sort of make an

          7  imprint to the extent that I could on, you know, the

          8  Noise Code, and to create a quieter, you know, more

          9  peaceful city, and to have people whose activities

         10  lead them to, you know, generate noise to be as good

         11  a neighbor as they possibly could be.

         12                 You know, of course, 60 Hudson is

         13  sort of like a famous building.  No one studies

         14  noise issues in New York City without knowing about

         15  60 Hudson Street and everything that has happened

         16  there.  And I think it is kind of a case study in

         17  how, you now, people have not been able to get

         18  relief to any significant degree.  And it was, you

         19  know, for buildings like 60 Hudson that sort of put

         20  us all in the room here today.  And so I am very

         21  grateful to you for, you know, representing those

         22  who suffer with this on a day- by- day basis.  And

         23  you know you have my assurance that we will do

         24  everything we can to try to beat this situation.

         25                 But I also want to make sure that you
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          2  have, you know, unfretted access to the Counsel of

          3  the Committee, Donna De Costanzo, who will be sort

          4  of, you know, working on this for me. And before you

          5  leave, make sure that you have her information,

          6  because just like I told the other witnesses, I want

          7  to make sure that as we proceed that you have access

          8  to the Committee staff so that you can continue to

          9  being heard.  You are being heard in public here

         10  now, but I want you to be heard in private as well.

         11  And as we sort of move this forward, I want to stay

         12  in constant touch with you and to the extent that we

         13  can, because I know that you are in a position where

         14  you go back and you speak to your neighbors and so

         15  on or whatever.  So you are sort of our link to 60

         16  Hudson Street, so thank you for coming forward.  And

         17  we appreciate your testimony, and we will do the

         18  best we can.

         19                 I am sorry for the situation, but we

         20  are going to do our best to sort of unburden you to

         21  the extent that we can.

         22                 Are there any other questions for

         23  these witnesses? Thanks very much, I appreciate you

         24  coming here.

         25                 MR. LANNAN:  Thank you.

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MS. STONE:  Thank you.

          3                                          CHAIRPERSON

          4  GENNARO:  Robert S. Altman.  Robert and I have

          5  something in common, we are both sort of, we have

          6  labored in the vineyard of the City Council's

          7  Central Staff for many years. And his office was a

          8  couple of doors down from mine, and he is a good

          9  friend.

         10                 MR. ALTMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But you know,

         12  that does not mean I am not putting you under oath,

         13  so no such luck, no such luck.

         14                 MR. ALTMAN:  I would not expect you

         15  to.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I am sure.  But

         17  it is a pleasure to have you here.  I look forward

         18  to hearing your good testimony.  And Donna will do

         19  the honors, and then we will proceed.

         20                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         21  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

         22  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         23  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         24                 MR. ALTMAN:  I do.

         25                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank

          3  you.

          4                 MR. ALTMAN:  Good afternoon, Mr.

          5  Chairman and members of the Committee, and honored

          6  Council members.  My name is Robert Altman, and I am

          7  the Legislative Consultant to the Queens County

          8  Builders and Contractors Association.  The testimony

          9  that I am about to submit is draft, because the

         10  Board of Directors of the Association has not had

         11  the opportunity to review it.  Our Board meeting is

         12  once a month, and after it is reviewed in October,

         13  we will get back to you with a complete set of

         14  official comments.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Bob, I just

         16  want to make sure that people have copies of Mr.

         17  Altman's statement?  Yes, okay.  I am sorry, go

         18  ahead.

         19                 MR. ALTMAN:  I am going to deviate a

         20  little bit from my remarks, only because you have

         21  the written remarks there in front of you, and I

         22  wish to elaborate on some of them as well.

         23                 The Housing Partnership of which

         24  practically all of our builder members participate

         25  in their programs, mentioned that they had discussed
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          2  this with various builders and had come to the

          3  conclusion that this bill may lead to a two- month

          4  delay in the construction process.  Within the

          5  testimony, I have submitted the potential cost of a

          6  two- week delay in the construction process, and

          7  that estimate is about approximately $1,600 based

          8  upon a $400,000 loan and 7 percent debt service.

          9  Additionally, there are costs such as taxes,

         10  insurance, and such that a builder must also carry

         11  on each job.  Expand that to two months, and

         12  obviously, you are looking at a cost at almost four

         13  times that factor.

         14                 We generally do not know what it

         15  might be on any particular given project.  Housing

         16  construction is a very fluid process.  You cannot do

         17   "A" on one day and "B" on the other, and just know

         18  that you are going to go have it and be able to get

         19  it done.  For example, you cannot start building

         20  your house by putting in the electrical wiring

         21  first.  You have to have a structure up, so

         22  everything must get done in a process.  And a

         23  builder does not necessarily have one staff, and I

         24  dare say, that they do not, in fact, have one staff.

         25    All of the different trades people that go into
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          2  the construction of the building, they hire

          3  subcontractors. If work is not completed in

          4  particular order, then one contract cannot start

          5  doing the work until the other subcontractor has

          6  finished that work.  Sometimes due to delays of

          7  weather and such, you need to get work done on the

          8  weekend.  You never know when that may be, but you

          9  may need to get that work done on the weekend, in

         10  order so that the next contractor can do their work

         11  the following week.

         12                 And it does not work so that you can

         13  simply push that work off, because the next

         14  contractor may have multiple jobs. And he may have,

         15  if you tell him I am going to delay it by a week, he

         16  may say that is no good.  I have to go out and I

         17  have to do another job for somebody else who is not

         18  delayed who I am promised to.

         19                 So the weekend time period allows for

         20  some breathing room space for these developers.

         21  Take that away from the, and you are potentially

         22  leading into delays, just for one simple contractor,

         23  that could be in months.  But for this example we

         24  went with the very slight delay of two weeks.

         25                 Now this cost is just simply being
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          2  passed on to the purchaser of the home.  These are

          3  your future constituents, it is a direct cost to

          4  those constituents.

          5                 In addition, that purchaser of the

          6  home, if they are delayed in purchasing that home,

          7  may be running up against the deadline of a mortgage

          8  commitment letter.  If they have that mortgage

          9  commitment letter expire, then they have to pay

         10  additional fees to the bank.  If the interest rate

         11  goes up, then there is an additional cost each month

         12  to that home- buyer.  So you have a second potential

         13  increased in the cost of operating that home.

         14                 That is why our objections to this

         15  are financial, more than anything else.  There are

         16  other factors as well, and we understand the

         17  Council's desire to provide for quality of life

         18  measures.  However, our Association consistently

         19  hears from City officials about the need for more

         20  affordable housing.  But rarely does the City

         21  reflect about how its regulations make affordable

         22  housing a more and more distant goal.  When the City

         23  passes overly broad regulations on disabled access,

         24  it increases the cost of building housing.  When the

         25  City passes overly broad sprinkler legislation, it
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          2  increases the cost of building housing.

          3                 Now both of these measures, which

          4  were previously passed by the Council had good

          5  intentions.  But good intentions cost money, and

          6  somebody has to pay, and usually it is the recipient

          7  of that housing.  Even on the Administrative level,

          8  builders face road blocks.  Like when the Building

          9  Department slows down the permitting process as

         10  often has been over the past few years in their

         11  efforts to fight corruption, we have been faced with

         12  more and more delays.  And everybody talks about

         13  reforming the Buildings Department, yet, for years,

         14  and in reality even decades, the builders only see

         15  increasing delays and promises of reform. Those

         16  delays cost money.

         17                 During the 1990s, according to the US

         18  Census, this city increased in population by

         19  650,000.  I believe that is the population of

         20  Charlotte, North Carolina, just by the increase of

         21  our census figure.  Now does anybody believe that

         22  this City has built housing units enough for 650,000

         23  over the past decade?  I do not think we do.

         24                 Yet, instead of City officials

         25  thinking of how we can make it less costly to build
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          2  affordable housing, this measure makes it harder.

          3  Without sufficient funds in this difficult budgetary

          4  times, and you have just been through a very

          5  difficult budget where you had slash billions of

          6  dollars, and it makes it more difficult to spend

          7  money on affordable housing.  We feel the focus of

          8  the Council should be, how can we take the City

          9  regulations that exist as they currently are, and

         10  without compromising one's safety, allow for more

         11  affordable housing?

         12                 If the Council wishes to assist in

         13  making housing affordable, we stand ready to work

         14  with it.  Tomorrow we are having a legislative

         15  breakfast, which every single member of the City

         16  Council has been invited.  Yes, you too.  Well, the

         17  invitations were sent out to everybody, and you are

         18  invited.  It is at City Hall Restaurant at 132

         19  Dwayne Street at 8:30, and it is on Zoning and

         20  Affordable Housing.  Council Member Avella is one of

         21  our speakers, as a matter of fact.

         22                 So we believe that there are things

         23  that we can work on with the City to make housing

         24  affordable.  And that is our goal. We are not huge

         25  developers here, Queens County Builders, we are,
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          2  some of our builders are medium sized, but most of

          3  our builders are small builders working on those

          4  partnership housing projects, working on doing

          5  affordable housing.  This is going to hurt us, this

          6  is definitely going to hurt us.

          7                 And even if it is not in what we term

          8  the affordable housing level, I do not know if, for

          9  the days that we get, that we are actually working

         10  on the weekend in those circumstances, in a City of

         11  eight million people in trying to reach the housing

         12  needs, if putting a little weekend work on there in

         13  order to make housing for all our people, rich,

         14  middle- class, and poor, is not such a bad goal in

         15  and of itself.

         16                 And so therefore, at this point in

         17  time, we are opposing Intro. 212, but we would

         18  welcome working with the Council in seeking other

         19  methods for approving affordable housing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, we

         21  appreciate your views, and I did not poke through

         22  your statement, but you said that you would talk

         23  like what the cost that might be incurred with the

         24  two- week delay.

         25                 MR. ALTMAN:  Two- week delay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Now is that

          3  what, two weeks is what you thought would be the

          4  case?

          5                 MR. ALTMAN:  No, two weeks was just

          6  picked at random.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          8                 MR. ALTMAN:  It was a short amount of

          9  time, we decided to use a short amount of time to

         10  show how something could add up.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         12                 MR. ALTMAN:  If you have a $400,000

         13  loan outstanding or you have expended some money,

         14  because, for example, in the area of Queens in which

         15  I come from, in Whitestone, simply purchasing a

         16  vacant lot of land, may cost a developer any place

         17  from 200 to 300 thousand dollars, in which they

         18  could then build a two- family house on.  So it is,

         19  you are looking at that cost, and you are looking at

         20  the cost of construction.

         21                 So using a conservative estimate of

         22  $400,000 outstanding, with a debt service, with an

         23  interest rate of 7 percent, you are looking at a

         24  monthly payment of, depending upon the payback

         25  period of the loan, but you are looking at, let's
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          2  say amortize it over 30 years, you are looking at a

          3  payment of $2,600 a month plus your taxes plus your

          4  insurance, divide that by 2 for your two weeks, and

          5  you are looking at about $1,600.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Thank

          7  you, thank you, Mr. Altman.

          8                 MR. ALTMAN:  You are welcome.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We will be,

         10  hang on one second.

         11                 MR. ALTMAN:  Sure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, you had

         13  mentioned in your statement that a lot of the

         14  construction, which is done by your member

         15  contractors involves low- income or, you know, so-

         16  called affordable housing.  I mean, how much of the

         17  activities of your members is sort of like directed

         18  in that area, I guess?

         19                 MR. ALTMAN:  I could not give you a

         20  figure.  I will give you an example, right now, for

         21  the largest project of our, of the president.  The

         22  President of our organization is the Beechwood

         23  Organization, and right now their largest project is

         24  a City project, Over by the Sea, in the Rockaways.

         25  And that is an affordable housing project being done
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          2  in conjunction with HPD.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, but that

          4  would not fall under - -

          5                 MR. ALTMAN:  Well a lot of, Over By

          6  The Sea is one- and two- family dwellings.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, sorry,

          8  sorry.

          9                 MR. ALTMAN:  So I mean that is in

         10  fact.  There is a multiple dwelling component to it,

         11  but the bulk of it is two family.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, okay,

         13  great.  Thank you. I appreciate it.

         14                 MR. ALTMAN:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Our next

         16  witness, James Walsh from the Queens Civic Congress.

         17    James Walsh, Queens Civic Congress.  Thank you

         18  much, thank you, Mr. Walsh, appreciate your coming

         19  down here.

         20                 MR. WALSH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The Counsel to

         22  the Committee will administer the oath before you

         23  proceed with your testimony. You have a written

         24  statement here, I see, thank you.

         25                 MR. WALSH:  Yes, we have a written
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          2  statement.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          4                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          5  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

          6  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          7  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. WALSH:  I do.

          9                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         10                 MR. WALSH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman

         11  and members of the Committee and City Council

         12  members.  I represent a Civic Association in Forest

         13  Hills, Queens.  And I represent today, also, the

         14  Queens Civic Congress, which has about 100 civic

         15  associations that belong to it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That you civic

         17  is the Association of Forest Hills.

         18                 MR. WALSH:  Forest Hills, yes, Sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I guess that is

         20  in Council Member Katz's district, is that right?

         21                 MR. WALSH:  That is yours.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That is on my

         23  side?

         24                 MR. WALSH:  It is not yours, yes, it

         25  used to be Povman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Pardon?

          3                 MR. WALSH:  It used to be Councilman

          4  Povman's.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I see.

          6                 MR. WALSH:  I am right next to the

          7  Jewel Avenue, Grand Central, Forest Hills High

          8  School, that area, homeowners.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Because I mean,

         10  I - -

         11                 MR. WALSH:  Half of it is maybe, or

         12  maybe part of it is Katz, but the rest of yours.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I see.

         14  Because I really was not aware of this Association.

         15                 MR. WALSH:  Right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And I have

         17  been, I was President of a Civic Association before

         18  I was elected.

         19                 MR. WALSH:  I realize that, right.

         20  We are right next to the Gardens.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         22                 MR. WALSH:  The other side of Queens

         23  Boulevard.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Of course, of

         25  course.
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          2                 MR. WALSH:  They get all the

          3  publicity.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Well now

          5  you have got the big stage now.

          6                 MR. WALSH:  I got the big stage now.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The reason that

          8  I asked is that I represent a piece of Forest Hills,

          9  you know, Melinda has most of it.  And I was not

         10  familiar with this particular civic.              MR

         11  . WALSH:  The reason is that we do not complain to

         12  you very often.  Usually, if we have a complaint we

         13  go to the Department of Buildings ourselves, instead

         14  of calling your office.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Complain to me,

         16  complain to me, please.

         17                 MR. WALSH:  Okay, we will do that.  I

         18  just, I am not going to take very long, but

         19  basically, one of the problems that the civic

         20  leaders in Queens are informed about from our

         21  neighbors is the weekend noise of construction

         22  projects.  Many areas of Queens are undergoing very

         23  drastic teardowns.  Houses being purchased, torn

         24  down and new construction.  And I think this bill

         25  proposal does not cover the noise abatement on
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          2  weekends for a type of a tear down or home

          3  improvement.  And basically, there are no more empty

          4  lots in our area.  So every new house is a tear down

          5  and a new construction.  And I get complaints every

          6  few weeks I get another complaint about the weekend

          7  noise, and the dirt that are emanating from these

          8  construction jobs.

          9                 And I just heard, Mr. Altman, who

         10  represents the building industry talk about the

         11  building industry having to pass these costs onto

         12  the Consumer, and of course, that is another

         13  problem.  But I see the problem from living in a

         14  residential area where the weekends can be quite

         15  noisy.  We, right now, in Forest Hills in my area,

         16  we have about 10 houses that are being

         17  reconstructed, torn down, and reconstructed.  And

         18  these builders are oftentimes come early in the

         19  morning and stay till late at night on weekends.

         20  And so we would like to just make you aware that we

         21  would like to have home improvement and tear downs

         22  included in the bill, if possible.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, yes,

         24  as a matter of fact, I am having the Counsel to the

         25  Committee look at the bill now to see if it does,
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          2  indeed, include that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Mr. Chairman?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, Council

          5  Member Avella.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  If I may?

          7  The issue of tear downs and basically the word

          8  demolition, is included in the bill. It is inherent

          9  in the bill.

         10                 MR. WALSH:  Okay, great.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  So that

         12  portion would be in there.

         13                 MR. WALSH:  Okay.  And I am told by

         14  the Queens Civic Congress that they would like the

         15  Department of Buildings permits to be posted also.

         16  So, I appreciate your time on this.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That is

         18  currently the case, the Department of Buildings.

         19                 MR. WALSH:  Usually it is, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, and they

         21  have to post a permit.

         22                 MR. WALSH:  In my area, I make sure

         23  there is a permit.  If there is not, I will go to

         24  the DOB.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Did you not get
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          2  anything from the earlier part, I want you to call

          3  me, remember?  You know.  I am testifying to you

          4  now.

          5                 MR. WALSH:  I will.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You took all

          7  the trouble to going to elect me, you might as well

          8  use me for something, for crying out loud.

          9                 MR. WALSH:  Actually, I helped to

         10  elect you, too. So I liked the fact that you were a

         11  civic leader.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         13                 MR. WALSH:  That was a big point.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well yes, I

         15  mean, I was involved in the Civic Congress and

         16  President of a civic, and certainly that is a good

         17  avenue into seeing all the, and I make a habit of

         18  you know kind of networking and staying in touch

         19  with local civic leaders in the district, and I

         20  would be delighted.

         21                 MR. WALSH:  Right.  I will call on

         22  you shortly.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         24                 MR. WALSH:  Honestly, I work with Pat

         25  Dolan on a lot of things.  So I know you know her.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Pat, calls my

          3  office four times a day.

          4                 MR. WALSH:  I know.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  As a matter of

          6  fact, we just did - -  Okay, I do not want to take

          7  up the Committee time on a parochial matter.  But -

          8   -

          9                 MR. WALSH:  I do not know where she

         10  gets the time to do what she does.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  She certainly

         12  does a lot.  And I just want to, you know, work

         13  closely with you on this, and with your civic on

         14  this issue and others.

         15                 MR. WALSH:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And I want to,

         17  by extension also, thank the Queens Civic Congress

         18  for all of their good work.

         19                 MR. WALSH:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         21  much, I appreciate it.  I appreciate your being here

         22  today.

         23                 MR. WALSH:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And the next

         25  witness Bruno Savo.  Mr. Walsh, do not go, hang on a
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          2  second.  Bruno Savo, the Building Industry

          3  Association of New York, to be followed by Charles

          4  Komanoff.  I just request, I will be back in one

          5  minute, okay?

          6                 Like I said, I will be back in one

          7  minute, but I want to recognize the presence of

          8  Council Member Peter Vallone, a member of this

          9  Committee from Queens.

         10                 Sorry for the delay, sorry about

         11  that.   Thank you very much for coming.  Donna De

         12  Costanzo will administer the oath, and then we will

         13  be happy if you could state your name for the record

         14  and proceed with your testimony.

         15                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         16  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

         17  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         18  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         19                 ALL:  I do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 MR. SAVO:  Good afternoon,

         23  Commissioner (sic) Gennaro and members of the

         24  Committee and guests.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, is your
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          2  microphone on?

          3                 MR. SAVO:  Yes, it is, Sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, okay

          5  fine, try to speak directly into the mic, so we can

          6  all hear it.

          7                 MR. SAVO:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

          9                 MR. SAVO:  My name is Bruno Savo, and

         10  I am the second generation builder on Staten Island.

         11    I am Vice President and I am testifying on behalf

         12  of the Building Industry Association of New York

         13  City.  We are a 200- member trade association,

         14  representing developers in New York City Boroughs of

         15  Staten Island, Brooklyn and the Bronx.

         16                 On Staten Island alone, the Building

         17  Industry is the largest employer and generator of

         18  revenue for taxpayers.  After review of Intro. 212

         19  and its explanatory memorandum, we feel it necessary

         20  to express our strong opposition, quite simply, it

         21  is unfair to both builders and related tradesmen.

         22                 The change that, according to Intro.

         23  212, only home improvements will be allowed on

         24  weekends, means that the homeowner, himself, may

         25  himself or hire a contractor to build an extension
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          2  on a home, or build a deck, or some other addition.

          3  But a developer in the process of building a new

          4  home, may not.  In some instances, the actual work

          5  in progress on a new home versus an existing one may

          6  be identical.  Example, installing windows, this

          7  also implies that ABC Window installer may do work

          8  on the home of Mr. Jones, but he cannot do the exact

          9  same work on Acme Contractors new home construction.

         10    Why should developers be stopped from doing such

         11  work with a contractor, but homeowners allowed?

         12                 The new law will, without a doubt,

         13  increase the cost of new home construction.  Homes

         14  will take longer to build, the cost for home will

         15  increase for the developer and the extra cost will

         16  be passed onto the end- user, the home- buyer.

         17  Purchasing a new home is expensive enough for the

         18  lower- and middle- income demographics in New York

         19  City.  And this will place an extra financial burden

         20  on them.

         21                 In today's unstable economy, our

         22  industry seems to be the only facet that remains

         23  strong.  Homeownership, right now, is one of the

         24  only investments that will retain its value.  We

         25  have all seen the roller coaster ride the stock
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          2  market has been on.  The new law will effect home-

          3  buyers with mortgage commitments. Mortgage rates are

          4  only good for a certain period of time.  Since

          5  houses will take longer to build, those with

          6  mortgage commitments will be in jeopardy of losing

          7  them, or they may pay an additional interest rate.

          8                 The construction industry in one that

          9  is often at the mercy of mother nature.  Weekends

         10  are sometimes used to make up the work that could

         11  not be done during the week due to inclement

         12  weather.  This means that masons, electricians,

         13  landscapers, plumbers, carpenters, et cetera, are

         14  working on new homes, cannot make up for lost time

         15  on weekends.  This will have a tremendous financial

         16  effect on these businesses, as they will lose the

         17  ability two days of seven to work.  Also some

         18  construction- related businesses cannot perform work

         19  at all in colder winter months, so their fiscal year

         20  is even shorter than most.

         21                 The way Intro. 212 is written, the

         22  term home improvement "should not include the

         23  construction of new building or work done by

         24  contractor in order to comply with guarantee of

         25  completion of a new building project."  Taken to its
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          2  simplest definition, this means that any contractor

          3  cannot even enter a building in progress, in order

          4  to clean up or to correct a hazardous condition.

          5                 If noise is the main concern with

          6  Intro. 212, why is it that New York City Department

          7  of Sanitation can noisily pick up garbage at 6:00

          8  a.m. On Saturday morning. Or landscapers and

          9  homeowners can mow lawns at 8:00 a.m. On Saturday?

         10  Surely, painting and wallpapering, in fact, most

         11  work on a new home is quieter than that.

         12                 I thank you for giving us this

         13  opportunity to express our concerns over Intro. 212,

         14  and sincerely hope that the Council considers our

         15  remarks.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  thank you very much for your thoughtful testimony.

         18  Certainly, it does point out that, you know, the

         19  difference in treatment between home improvement

         20  operations and new construction.  And no other

         21  witness that we have had today has, you know, laid

         22  it out in quite such, sort of striking terms.  So

         23  your testimony is compelling, and I thank you for

         24  coming here and providing it to us.  I appreciate

         25  it.  I want you to stay in contact with the Counsel
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          2  to the Committee as we process through this process

          3  as well.  And we look forward to, you know, staying

          4  in touch as we figure out what we are going to do

          5  here, but we thank you very much.

          6                 MR. SAVO:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  As

          8  you mentioned, our next witness, Charles Komanoff.

          9  Mr. Komanoff, welcome, you are a well- known name at

         10  City Hall here.

         11                 MR. KOMANOFF:  I am not sure why.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, I know of

         13  you from some of the things that you - -

         14                 MR. KOMANOFF:  Well I submitted a

         15  statement at the Indian Point hearings you had in

         16  May.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, but you -

         18   -

         19                 MR. KOMANOFF:  Unfortunately, I could

         20  not appear.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: - -  what is

         22  your - -

         23                 MR. KOMANOFF:  Well I am a policy

         24  analyst, an economist, somewhat of an activist.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, right,
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          2  right.

          3                 MR. KOMANOFF:  I am even a former

          4  employee of the New York City DEP from the Lindsey

          5  Administration.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I see, I

          7  see.

          8                 MR. KOMANOFF:  I am proud to say

          9  that, too.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well, welcome,

         11  it is a pleasure to have you here today.  Donna De

         12  Costanzo will administer the oath, and then we would

         13  be grateful for your prepared remarks.

         14                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  In the testimony

         15  that you are about to give, do you swear or affirm

         16  to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

         17  the truth?

         18                 MR. KOMANOFF:  I do.

         19                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         20                 MR. KOMANOFF:  Mr. Chairman, you have

         21  my statement, and I am going to dispense with it, I

         22  would rather use my time and yours, if you do not

         23  mind, to address a statement that you made to Ms.

         24  Stone, the woman who lives at 84 Thomas Street,

         25  directly across from the south facade of 60 Hudson.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, she is

          3  right there.

          4                 MR. KOMANOFF:  Yes, she is a friend

          5  of mine.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          7                 MR. KOMANOFF:  And by the way, even

          8  though I live, I live kind of around two corners

          9  from Mr. Lannan and Ms. Stone. So I am not directly

         10  affected by the noise from 60 Hudson, but my

         11  neighbors are.  The neighborhood is, and perhaps

         12  even more than them, although I love them, I am just

         13  appalled at what the operators at 60 Hudson have

         14  been able to get away with all these years, and what

         15  it sounds like they are going to continue to be able

         16  to get away with.

         17                 But let me address myself to what

         18  concerns me most. It was your remark, if I may, that

         19  the economic - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, this is

         21  it, yes, come on.

         22                 MR. KOMANOFF: - -  that the economic

         23  impact of Intro. 199 or even the next step, Intro.

         24  200, perhaps the one that would consolidate not just

         25  individual pieces of equipment at the owner level,
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          2  but all of the owners at the building level.

          3                 And if I heard you correctly, you

          4  seemed to say that this would cause tremendous

          5  retrofitting costs, severe economic dislocation, and

          6  I certainly agree with the concern, this is a city

          7  in trouble.  And the last thing that we can afford

          8  is more costs to business or anything in the City of

          9  New York, I am completely mindful of that.

         10                 What I want to bring to your

         11  attention though, is, first, there is nothing on the

         12  table, at least, nothing that we at Neighbors

         13  Against Noise have seen or have been shown that

         14  indicates any economic impact or dislocation or

         15  retrofitting costs from Intro. 199 or a tougher

         16  version.  Now this is not to say, - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How could that

         18  be?  Because if they have, if you currently have,

         19  you know, several units that are going beyond the

         20  current noise output, you would either have to not

         21  use those units, you would have to get new ones, you

         22  would have to baffle them somehow, you would have

         23  to, it is not a straight of change?

         24                 MR. KOMANOFF:  It is not free, you

         25  are absolutely right.  I did not say it would be
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          2  free.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I see.

          4                 MR. KOMANOFF:  I said we have not

          5  been shown anything about the impact.  And if you

          6  are in the same boat as us, they are flying blind.

          7  We do not know if the impact of 199 would be a

          8  million dollars in capital costs, one hundred

          9  million dollars in capital costs, ten billion, you

         10  know, we have no idea.

         11                 And so my first point, I will just

         12  have two, is that absent, at least, something from

         13  the telecommunications industry and the real estate

         14  industry, you know, those that would be directly or

         15  most effected.  We are just not, if I may, in a

         16  position to say that we cannot impose this and we

         17  cannot afford this.

         18                 So at first blush, or my first

         19  request, I think the first order for this Committee

         20  would be to solicit a statement, a paper, a filing,

         21  something that would express and quantify what they

         22  think the impact would be, and then let us, you

         23  know, go over that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         25                 MR. KOMANOFF:  And then the second
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          2  point, and then I will be done, - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

          4                 MR. KOMANOFF: - -  is to remind you,

          5  if I may, that environmental regulation, the history

          6  of environmental regulation, as you know, has been

          7  characterized by statement after statement of

          8  unaffordability by the business interests whose

          9  situation was about to be regulated, whose ox was

         10  being goaded, whatever way we want to put it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         12                 MR. KOMANOFF:  Cleaner cars, remember

         13  back in 1970 we could not have them, because

         14  catalytic converters or whatever would be

         15  unaffordable, it would put Detroit out of business.

         16  Well, we know now that new cars today are ten,

         17  twenty times cleaner than, ten, twenty times less

         18  polluting than they were 30 years ago.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         20                 MR. KOMANOFF:  Clean power plants,

         21  the first area that I put my teeth on when I worked

         22  for the City, we could not clean up particulates and

         23  sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide, and in the same

         24  order of magnitude or better improvements have been

         25  made. We could not have more energy efficient
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          2  refrigerators is what GE and the rest - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          4                 MR. KOMANOFF: - -  said in the early

          5  eighties when the first efficiency standards were

          6  being promulgated.  And you probably know this, new

          7  refrigerators today of a certain cubic foot size use

          8  60 percent less electricity than 20 years ago.  And

          9  I suggest to you, not that I believe in

         10  technological wizardry, but the computers, the

         11  servers, the routers, the switches, all of the

         12  electrical devices that throw off the heat in

         13  buildings like 60 Hudson, that then have to be

         14  cooled by fans, as well as the fans themselves,

         15  there is a great variability in the efficiency

         16  potential of that machinery.  And let's make sure

         17  that we do not make the same mistake that was made

         18  in all those other sectors that delayed the

         19  implementation of the more efficient new equipment.

         20                 So in closing, I am not going to

         21  represent that this would be cost free.  I am going

         22  to suggest that the cost of implementing the changes

         23  that my neighbors' sanity depends on, will be much

         24  less than the business interest, you know, at stake

         25  would like us to believe.  So let's have an open
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          2  process, and then see what we can do to solve this

          3  problem, on which, as my statement suggests 199 is a

          4  first step.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

          6  much.  What I am going to do, is to direct the

          7  Counsel of the Committee to you know reach out for

          8  that kind of assessment from the industry, and let

          9  them, you know, do their utmost and do diligence to

         10  engage the impact on what this is going to mean.  So

         11  let's put some numbers on the table, and then we can

         12  have a more informed discussion as to exactly what

         13  we are looking at.  And so an opportunity for other

         14  people to take a look at those numbers would be a

         15  healthy thing as well.  So thank you for your

         16  important value added to our deliberation here.

         17                 MR. KOMANOFF:  Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We appreciate

         19  it.

         20                 MR. KOMANOFF:  Okay, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, you

         22  bet.  We have two remaining witnesses, Carlton Brown

         23  from Full Spectrum Building and Development, and

         24  Desmond Emanuel from the Santa Fe Construction,

         25  maybe we can do a panel, or something like that.  To
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          2  have both entities to go on at the same time, and of

          3  course, this is not to convey that you are on the

          4  same page or support each other's comments.  And

          5  sitting next to someone on a panel does not mean

          6  that you are endorsing what they would say.

          7                 Okay, Mr. Brown and Mr. Emanuel,

          8  terrific, okay.  I am just collecting your

          9  statements here, okay.  I have Mr. Brown's

         10  statement, and I am looking for, Mr. Emanuel, do you

         11  have a statement, as well?  Okay, we are going to

         12  have some copies of that made.  So thank you very

         13  much for being here, thank you for your patience.

         14  We greatly appreciate it.  The Committee Counsel

         15  will administer the oath to the witnesses, and then

         16  we would be delighted if you could state your names

         17  for the record and proceed with your testimony.

         18                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         19  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

         20  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         21  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         22                 MR. BROWN:  Yes.

         23                 MR. EMANUEL:  Yes.

         24                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, you know
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          2  either can go first, I will let you decide that

          3  amongst yourselves.

          4                 MR. BROWN:  Good afternoon.  My name

          5  is Carlton Brown.  I am a Principal at Full Spectrum

          6  Building and Development. I will just read my

          7  statement.

          8                 Full Spectrum is a small African-

          9  American owned construction and development business

         10  in New York City whose primary focus is development

         11  of affordable housing.  Specifically, over the years

         12  our focus has become the development of housing that

         13  promotes a sustainable environment and sustainable

         14  community.  In short, we are green housing

         15  developers.  Our projects are concentrated in the

         16  emerging communities like Harlem, Bedford

         17  Stuyvesant, Brownsville and East New York.  We

         18  believe that the proposed legislation will hamper

         19  the redevelopment of these communities in which we

         20  work by increasing the cost of housing without

         21  providing additional economic or environmental

         22  benefit.

         23                 We vigorously oppose the intent of

         24  the legislation to prohibit weekend construction on

         25  affordable housing projects. We believe that it is
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          2  important that the Council see the big picture and

          3  not be confused by one of the details, noise.  As

          4  green housing developers, we recognize that,

          5  inevitably the development of urban habitat calls

          6  for some modicum of environmental degradation.  The

          7  City is not an undisturbed green field in Montana.

          8  It is the most complex of environments for human

          9  habitation that can exist.  As a consequence, as a

         10  reflection of our hierarchical value systems, we

         11  must make compromises in order to improve the

         12  quality of life for those who inhabit the City and

         13  to go on growing our communities.

         14                 This is a clear case in which the

         15  unintended consequence of a regulatory body will

         16  retard the City's regeneration in communities in

         17  which regeneration is most needed. The proposed law

         18  requires compromises that I believe do not benefit

         19  emerging communities and businesses specifically and

         20  generally limit the City's ability to renew itself.

         21  According to many economic planners, the high cost

         22  of housing in New York City is among the greatest

         23  hurdles to the post September 11th recovery of the

         24  local economy.  It is the single most important

         25  reasons why new businesses are reluctant to relocate
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          2  to New York City and the primary reason why many

          3  businesses leave.  In an effort to mitigate weekend

          4  noise, perhaps more a nuisance than an environmental

          5  hazard, the law will increase the cost of housing

          6  without providing a balancing economic or health

          7  benefit.  Even if one were to accept that weekend

          8  noise associated with housing construction is an

          9  environmental hazard, even when it meets the weekday

         10  standards for sound emissions, it would be the least

         11  environmentally hazardous condition imaginable

         12  affecting the development of new urban housing.  It

         13  would present no long term health hazard (by

         14  definition its temporary) nor would its elimination

         15  provide a long term health benefit.

         16                 Much of New York City's affordable

         17  housing is developed in communities in which only a

         18  few years ago gunfire was more likely to be heard

         19  than the clanging of carpenters hammers, or any

         20  other noises associated with the renewal of urban

         21  under- served communities.  Any legislation that

         22  would hamper the development of new housing in

         23  marginalized communities should be opposed.  I

         24  believe there are a few, if any, in this body who,

         25  in fact, believe that marginalized communities
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          2  should remain so.  By eliminating weekend work the

          3  legislation will extend the duration of

          4  construction.  This will raise interest costs, site

          5  security costs, site supervision costs, insurance

          6  costs, and other general condition costs.  These

          7  cost increases will provide no benefit to the

          8  communities, but will raise the cost of quality,

          9  affordable housing beyond the reach of a larger

         10  swath of the population.

         11                 If the Council is indeed concerned

         12  with implementing housing legislation to address

         13  environmental issues associated with housing, it

         14  should address issues that would provide immediate

         15  health and financial benefit for those who inhabit

         16  the housing, the communities, and the City at large.

         17    The Council should consider legislation that

         18  addresses the energy performance of the housing, in-

         19  door air quality, the incorporation of recyclables

         20  and renewable materials and renewable energy.  The

         21  implementation of new standards in these areas of

         22  environmental concern will address the most urgent

         23  environmental issues facing the City.  The Council

         24  should undertake a plan to review Building Code and

         25  Housing Code regulations to reduce energy costs to
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          2  residents through improved energy performance, to

          3  encourage off grid power generation, and to

          4  incorporate materials and design strategies that

          5  improve both in door and out- door air quality.

          6  From our experience at Full Spectrum, we believe

          7  these issues, if adequately addressed by the

          8  Council, will do more to improve the quality of life

          9  for all New Yorkers, while at the same time,

         10  reducing first costs and life cycle costs of housing

         11  to produce a more livable and greener environment.

         12                 In summary, I believe the legislation

         13  proposed by New York City Council on Environmental

         14  Protection is misplaced.  It will increase housing

         15  cost without providing financial benefit, while

         16  failing to address those environmental issues

         17  associated with urban habitat that have greater

         18  health and economic benefit to emerging under-

         19  served communities.  I strongly urge that you not

         20  support this amendment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you for

         22  your compelling testimony.  I appreciate it very

         23  much.  But I would rather have Mr. Emanuel testify,

         24  and then I will ask questions or comments of both of

         25  you.
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          2                 MR. EMANUEL:  All right, my name is

          3  Desmond Emanuel. I am President of Santa Fe

          4  Construction Landmark Projects.  We have been

          5  working like Carlton Brown in the Partnerships'

          6  Affordable Housing Program.  And that is a program

          7  that for the last 20 years- -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Which program

          9  is that, Sir?

         10                 MR. EMANUEL:  The New York City

         11  Housing Partnership Affordable Housing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, okay,

         13  right, we just heard from them.

         14                 MR. EMANUEL:  You heard the testimony

         15  of the President earlier this afternoon.

         16                 Myself, like Mr. Brown, are two of

         17  the participants in that program, as African-

         18  American builder developers.  And that program has

         19  been one of the few programs here in the City that

         20  has the kept the working poor in the City by

         21  providing affordable housing to them.  It has been

         22  the catalyst for keeping the working poor here in

         23  New York City and the Lower Middle Class.

         24                 It also has been the program that has

         25  been the specific, direct provider of the economies
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          2  that has brought back a number of boroughs.  I can

          3  tell you that I grew up as a teenager in the South

          4  Bronx, and I, after leaving the South Bronx at Kelly

          5  Street and Longwood Avenue, was able to go back

          6  there 15 years later and develop housing in that

          7  neighborhood.

          8                 For the 10 years that we have been

          9  working in this program, we have seen how it has

         10  transformed many neighborhoods. Our experience is

         11  such that, as was stated here before, that we are

         12  subjected to mother nature, and quite often,

         13  although we are not in a position to schedule a

         14  project that we can make that determination that we

         15  cannot work on weekends, whether it is a truck that

         16  breaks down or someone that does not show up, our

         17  planning has to be on the spot, direct, last minute,

         18  that requires for us to work on weekends, so as to

         19  enable us to deliver our commitments that we have

         20  made to purchases.

         21                 I would like to also take issue with

         22  one earlier speaker who says that, in fact, all of

         23  the cost is passed onto the home- buyer.  That is

         24  not necessarily the case.  In the program that we

         25  operate in, when we have made a commitment in terms
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          2  of prices, that price is fixed, not one penny in

          3  change costs once we have fixed those prices can be

          4  transferred to the purchases.  So whether it is

          5  costs attributable to whether costs attributable to

          6  our own mistakes, we absorb those costs.  And in

          7  cases where our schedules are impact, we need to

          8  have the ability and flexibility to make those

          9  determinations that we can work on weekend to make

         10  up for lost time, when we make commitments to

         11  purchases who wants to get their kids into school

         12  and into new school districts that they hope to live

         13  in, in September.  We cannot afford to have a

         14  situation where because we cannot work on weekends,

         15  we have now shifted our construction from ending in

         16  August to shifting it into October where that family

         17  who has made a decision to move into a new school

         18  district, has turned their lives upside down.

         19                 From time to time we work on projects

         20  that is impacted by other costs.  We have a

         21  situation currently, where we, our project was held

         22  up because we were sued, it went all the way up to

         23  the US Court of Appeals, we prevailed.  Now we need

         24  to make up time, we need to make up time to deliver

         25  to those homeowners. And the only choice we have,
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          2  the only variable that is left for us is to build

          3  faster and quicker.  And that means that we need to

          4  build on weekends.  It is not a matter of just

          5  simply putting more resources into the job, because

          6  you throw men into the job, you throw more work

          7  people into the job, you create an unsafe condition.

          8    And so one of the choices we have in these type of

          9  situation is for weekend construction.

         10                 We too, recognize that quality of

         11  life is important to individuals who already live in

         12  the community.  And as stated earlier, by both

         13  Carlton Brown and an earlier individual who

         14  testified, there are so many things that takes place

         15  in the City, where we believe that where noise is

         16  generated, that we believe that our activity for the

         17  type of work we do, that it will have minimal impact

         18  on the community in the long run.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         20  both, very much for your very compelling testimony.

         21  It seems I saved the best for last.  And yes,

         22  certainly, I would not want to do anything that is

         23  going to impede the development of affordable

         24  housing in places where we most need it, and the

         25  revitalization of neighborhoods that, you know,
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          2  certainly deserve it.  And so we are not, our work

          3  is by no means finished, and I am not currently a

          4  sponsor of Intro. 212, but it is coming in my

          5  Committee, and so today marks the beginning of this

          6  Committee's due diligence, if you will, on this

          7  issue, on this very important issue.  And I

          8  appreciate the opportunity to hear from you and the

          9  segment of the building community that you

         10  represent.  And so as we go forward, we will be in

         11  touch.  And I greatly appreciate the benefit of your

         12  years.  And you have made a real impression upon me,

         13  and for that I thank you very much.

         14                 MR. BROWN:  Thank you.

         15                 MR. EMANUEL:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thanks, okay.

         17  And any other witnesses who wish to be heard?

         18  Seeing none, hearing none, the hearing is adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 3:11 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 24th day of September 2002.
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